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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company (“the Company”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the statements of profit or loss,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization
for Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards), that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code’s requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter
Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of refined and petrochemical
products is recognized as per the related offtake
agreements with the customers (“the offtakers”).
The Company uses IFRS 15 practical expedient of
right to invoice, and revenue is booked on periodic
basis in respect of products for which the Company
has the right to invoice as per the related
agreements. Whilst significant portion of the
Company’s revenue is based on the final prices as
stipulated in the related offtake agreements (based
on international market pricing). For some products,
the Company initially records revenue based on
provisional price mechanism which is based on
independent external market quotations at the time
of transfer of control of the products which are later
adjusted based on actual selling prices received
from the offtakers. The management believes that
this provisional price is the best industry estimate
based on the independent external prices prevailing
in the market at that time. Subsequent to the sale of
these products to the end customers by the
Company’s offtakers on actual market price, a
positive or negative net back adjustment is made by
the Company to the initial provisional price. This
adjustment is finalized on a regular basis whenever
the related product is sold as stipulated in the
related agreements.

Based on the above factors and the materiality of
the amounts involved, we have considered revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

Refer to note 3(c) to the financial statements for the
Company's accounting policy relating to revenue
recognition.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following procedures to address the
key audit matter:

e oObtained an understanding of the nature of
revenue contracts used by the Company for each
significant revenue stream, tested a sample of
representative sales contracts to confirm our
understanding and assessed whether or not
management’s  application of IFRS 15
requirements was in accordance with the
accounting standard;

e tested relevant processes and controls
established by the management to ensure
appropriate recognition of revenue;

o performed tests of details on a sample of sales
transactions and vouched back to source
documents;

e evaluated provisional price adjustment as at year
end for the sales made near to the year-end;

o performed cut-off procedures to ensure that
revenue is recognized when the control is
transferred to the offtakers and in the correct
accounting period;

e oObtained confirmations from the offtakers in
respect of value of products sold; and

e assessed adequacy of the disclosures related to
revenue in the notes to the financial statements.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued
by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and Company’s By-laws and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. ‘Reasonable assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit of Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company (“the Company”).

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For KPMG Professional Services
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Operating profit

Financial charges
Financial income
(Loss) profit before Zakat and tax

Zakat
Tax

(Loss) profit after Zakat and tax

For the year ended December 31,

(Loss) earnings per share (Saudi Riyals) - Basic and

diluted

/%Pﬁa QMM e A

Abdullah Jaber Al Faifi
Chairman — Board Audit Committee

Notes 2022 2021
5,26 55,952,481 45,638,066
6,26 (54,268,748) (40,881,573)

1,683,733 4,756,493
7 101,164 152,042
8 (962,990) (834,580)
9 (809,679) (881,484)
12,228 3,192,471
10 (1,359,448) (1,089,212)
11 280,293 195,927
(1,066,927) 2,299,186
24 (42,896) (40,089)
24 (5,058) (222,436)
(1,114,881) 2,036,661
i (0.79) 1.77

7 Othman A. Al Ghamdi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Akihiko Hiraoka
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended December 31,

Notes 2022 2021
(Loss) profit after Zakat and tax : (1,114,881) 2,036,661
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 22 154,406 43,122
Tax effect 24 (11,580) (3,234)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 142,826 39,888
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year (972,055) 2,076,549
) ",
— G
Abdullah Jaber Al Faifi Othman A. Al Ghamdi Akihiko Hiraoka
Chairman — Board Audit Committee President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2022 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 42,637,598 44,090,232
Right-of-use assets 14 10,010,148 10,668,958
Intangible assets 15 291,283 370,866
Long-term loans 16 244,540 179,101
Investment 16 10,000 16,412
Deferred tax asset 25 124,354 140,992
53,317,923 55,466,561
Current assets
Inventories 18 4,028,765 3,806,450
Trade receivables 16 5,377,367 8,257,121
Current portion of long-term loans 16 4,151 5,223
Prepayments and other receivables 19 805,733 1,854,707
Cash and cash equivalents 17 2,044,793 3,971,961
12,260,809 17,895,462
Total assets 65,578,732 73,362,023
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 20 16,710,000 8,760,000
Statutory reserve 21 252,134 252,134
Employees' share ownership plan 22 (5,339) (4,510)
Accumulated losses (1,701,934) (701,713)
Total equity 15,254,861 8,305,911
Non-current liabilities
Loans, borrowings and other long-term liability 16 12,577,390 19,830,200
Lease liabilities 14 10,095,476 10,645,187
Employees' benefits 22 719,725 779,645
23,392,591 31,255,032
Current liabilities
Current maturity of loans and barrowings 16 13,435,306 18,898,428
Current maturity of lease liabilities 14 602,365 588,445
Trade and other payables 16 12,117,925 12,397,978
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23 744,273 1,874,415
Zakat and tax payable 25 31,411 41,814
26,931,280 33,801,080
Total liabilities 50,323,871 65,056,112
Total equity and liabilities 65,578,732 73,362,023

Abdullah Jaber Al Faifi
Chairman — Board Audit Committee

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As at December 31,

/J 7 - C/ﬁ”—‘

Othman A. Al Ghamdi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Akihiko Hiracka
Chief Financial Officer



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Employees’
share
Share Statutory ownership Accumulated
Note capital reserve plan losses Total

Balance as at January 1, 2022 8,760,000 252,134 (4,510) (701,713) 8,305,911
Net loss after Zakat and tax - - - (1,114,881) (1,114,881)
Other comprehensive income - - - 142,826 142,826
Total comprehensive loss - - - (972,055) (972,055)
Increase in share capital 20 7,950,000 - (1,618) - 7,948,382
Transaction costs 20 - - - (47,013) (47,013)
Vesting of shares under employees’

share ownership plan - - 789 - 789
Zakat reimbursement - - - 18,847 18,847
Balance as at December 31, 2022 16,710,000 252,134 (5,339) (1,701,934) 15,254,861
Balance as at January 1, 2021 8,760,000 252,134 (4,611) (2,804,040) 6,203,483
Net profit after Zakat and tax - - - 2,036,661 2,036,661
Other comprehensive income - - - 39,888 39,888
Total comprehensive income - - - 2,076,549 2,076,549
Vesting of shares under employees’

share ownership plan - - 101 - 101
Zakat and income tax

reimbursements - - - 25,778 25,778
Balance as at December 31, 2021 8,760,000 252,134 (4,510) (701,713) 8,305,911

e

Abdullah Jaber Al Faifi Othman A. Al Ghamdi

//”/.(ﬂ%/’:’“‘—'—'-

Chairman — Board Audit Committee President and Chief Executive Officer

Akihiko Hiraoka
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) profit before Zakat and tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 13,14
Financial charges 10
Financial income 11
Amortization 15
Provision for slow moving inventories 18
Impairment loss on receivables 9
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities 7
Provision for deferred employee service

Changes in:
Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees’ benefits

Zakat and income tax paid 251
Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13
Net movement in long-term loans

Reduction in investment 16
Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayments of loans and borrowings
Increase in share capital, net
Transaction cost

Repayment of lease liabilities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 17
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17
Supplemental schedule of non-cash information
Loans and other liability converted into share capital 20
Zakat and income tax reimbursable from shareholders
Addition to property, plant and equipment through accrued

expenses and other liabilities
Long-term loan repayments settled against capacity

payments 16
Addition to intangible assets through property, plant and

equipment 15
Addition to right-of-use assets 14

L S s) J

For the year ended December 31,

2022 2021
(1,066,927) 2,299,186
2,955,530 3,102,734
1,350,448 1,089,212
(280,293) (195,927)
83,564 82,236
53,511 8,937
: 627
1,033 4,284
(45) (840)
1,618 :
3,107,439 6,390,449
(275,826) (744,731)
2,879,754 (4,267,336)
1,067,821 (865,688)
(326,345) 4,707,851
(1,137,137) 825,562
93,658 44,481
5,409,364 6,090,588
(53,299) -
280,293 175,877
(1,75,028) (969,832)
4,461,330 5,296,633
(798,374) (456,135)
(97,971) 3,285,241
6,412 -
(889,933) 2,829,106
3,989,500 12,698,075
(10,840,536) (17,296,763)
1,085,882 s
(47,013) .
(586,382) (571,222)
(16) (10)
(5,498,565) (5,169,920)
(1,927,168) 2,955,819
3,971,961 1,016,142
2,044,793 3,971,961
5,962,500 ;
18,847 25,778
91 536
- 379,882
/ 3,981 21,591
51,342 55,939

P LA

Abdullah Jaber Al Faifi Ofhman A. Al Ghamdi

Chairman — Board Audit Committee President and Chief Executive Officer
The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

9

Akihiko Hiraoka

Chief Financial Officer



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Al amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

General information

Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company (“the Company” or “PetroRabigh”) is a company registered in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 4602002161 issued by the Ministry of Commerce
and Investment, Jeddah, on Shaaban 15, 1426H (September 19, 2005) subsequently revised by Ministry of
Commerce and Investment, Riyadh on Shawal 22, 1428H (November 3, 2007).

The Company is engaged in the development, construction and operation of an integrated refining and
petrochemical complex (the Complex), including the manufacturing and sales of refined and petrochemical
products.

The Company’s registered address is P.O. Box 101, Rabigh 21911, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants
(SOCPA) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as well as other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA
(collectively referred to as “IFRS as endorsed in KSA”).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for investment, which is
measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss and defined benefits obligations which is recognised at
the present value of future obligations using the Projected Unit Credit Method. These financial statements are
presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (Saudi Riyals).

As at December 31, 2022, the Company'’s current liabilities exceed the current assets by Saudi Riyals 14,670
million, primarily due to the equity bridge loan amounting to Saudi Riyals 9,309.5 million falling due on March 20,
2023 which is backed by the founding shareholders’ guarantees as provided to the lenders. The management is
in discussions with the lenders regarding the extension or restructuring in respect of equity bridge loan (see Note
16.3.1).

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the business plan for the year ending December 31, 2023
and believes that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the financial statements of the Company continue to be prepared on going concern basis.

2.1 New standards, interpretations and amendments

Standards, interpretations and amendments adopted

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing
January 1, 2022:

Standard /

Interpretation Description

IAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

IFRS Standards Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 — 2020

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use
IFRS 3 Reference to the conceptual framework

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

10



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Al amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

The standards, interpretations and amendments issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the
financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, where applicable, when
they become effective.

Effective from periods

Standard / beginning on or after
Interpretation Description the following date
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts January 1, 2023
IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

(amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimate - Amendment January 1, 2023
IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction January 1, 2023
IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2  Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 1, 2023
IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

(Amendments to IFRS 16) January 1, 2024

IFRS 10 and IAS 28  Sale or contribution of assets between investor and its Available for optional

associate or joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS  adoption / effective date

28) deferred indefinitely

The standards, interpretations and amendments with effective date of January 1, 2023 that will not have any
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.

IBOR reform represents the reform and replacement of interest rate benchmarks such as the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) by global regulators. On March 5, 2021, the UK’s Financial Conduct Authority announced
the future cessation and loss of representativeness of the LIBOR benchmarks. The Company has a number of
loans primarily referenced to USD LIBOR, of which most applicable tenors will cease to be published on June 30,
2023. In this regard, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, and IFRS 16, Leases, as part of phase 2 of a two phase project for IBOR reform, which address
issues that arise from the implementation of the reform.

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (‘IBOR’) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (‘RFR’). The amendments include
the following practical expedients:

- a practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest,

- permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued,

- provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when a RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements, as the Company:

- does not have floating interest rate nominated loans, except for the loans that are USD LIBOR based
amounting to Saudi Riyals 10,683 million as at December 31, 2022. The RFR for these will become available
till mid - 2023 and therefore, no reliable estimate can be made for the impact of the result of future
negotiations,

- applies its Incremental Borrowing Rates (IBR) to discount leases, which are not derived or IBOR based, and
- has no significant insurance contracts subject to any IBOR referred rate.

The Company intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

11



RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Al amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial period, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Also see Note 27.

Business model for managing financial assets

In making an assessment whether its business model for managing financial assets is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, the Company considers the following:

- Management’s stated policies and objectives for the asset and the operation of those policies in practice;

- how management evaluates the performance of the asset;

- whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual income;

- the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;

- the reason for any asset sales; and

- whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period of time relative to their contractual maturity or
are sold shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity.

Generally, a business model is a matter of fact which can be evidenced by the way the business is managed and
the information provided to management.

Contractual cash flows of financial assets

The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the contractual terms of financial assets it originates or
acquires give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest income on the
principal outstanding and so may qualify for amortised cost measurement. In making the assessment, the
Company considers all contractual terms, including any prepayment terms or provisions to extend the maturity of
the assets that change the amount and timing of cash flows and whether the contractual terms contain leverage.

Defined benefit plan

The cost of post-employment defined benefits are the present value of the related obligation, as determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions, which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
withdrawal before normal retirement age, mortality rates, etc. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. With respect to determining the appropriate discount
rate, yield and duration of high quality bonds obligation, as designated by an internationally acknowledged rating
agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined
benefit obligation.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company exercises judgement in determining the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets or physical
wear and tear. The Company reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charges
are adjusted where the Company believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Extension options for leases

In case of lease contracts where extension options are also available to the Company, judgement is applied in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option. The Company reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or
significant change in circumstances that are within the control of the Company.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate,
whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less cost to sell, and its value in use,
and is determined for the individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows which are largely
independent from other assets or groups. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining the fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriate source is used, such as observable market prices or, if no observable
market prices exist, estimated prices for similar assets or if no estimated prices for similar assets exist, it is based
on discounted future cash flow calculations.

Summary of significant accounting policies
€) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- ltis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
(b) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits from the asset’s highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would utilise the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period. The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, and for non-recurring measurement.

(c) Revenue recognition
Contracts with customers

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers when or as it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control of promised goods or service to a customer. When, or as, a performance obligation is
satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue, the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled after deducting value added taxes, excise duties and similar levies. The transaction price is allocated to
the performance obligations in the contract based on standalone selling prices of the goods or services promised.

The transfer of control for refined and petrochemical products usually coincides with title passing to the marketers
/ off-takers and the marketers/off-takers taking physical possession, while the Company has no effective control
or continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership over these products.

Revenue in respect of sales of refined and petrochemical products is recognised over the period as per the related
offtake and other agreements with the customers. Transfer of refined and petrochemical products to customers
is considered as series of distinct goods and the Company uses output method to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction or performance obligation. The Company has further used IFRS 15 practical expedient of
right to invoice, and revenue is booked on monthly basis in respect of goods and services for which the Company
has a right to invoice as per the related agreements.

The portion of sales made through marketers / off-takers are recorded at the relevant provisional prices agreed
with such marketers / off-takers at the time of delivery of products, which are subsequently adjusted as appropriate
based on the actual selling prices, after deducting the costs of shipping and distribution. All revenue from these
sales, both that recognized at the time of delivery and that from post-delivery price adjustments, is disclosed as
revenue from contracts with customers.

The Company estimates the variable consideration as the most likely amount based on available market
information and recently published prices of refined and petrochemical products. The Company includes in the
transaction price, some or all of an amount of variable consideration only to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the relevant variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Revenue from port services is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when:

- The Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend;

- ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and

- The amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest (profit) rate method. The effective interest rate is the
interest rate that exactly discounts the estimated stream of future cash payment or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or when appropriate over the shorter period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals which is also the functional currency of the
Company. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially translated by the Company into Saudi Riyals using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction it first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated in the functional currency using
the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary assets measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain
or loss on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognized in statement of comprehensive income or statement of profit or loss are also recognized in statement
of comprehensive income or statement profit or loss, respectively).

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any,
except for capital projects-in-progress, which are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of each asset. Finance costs on
borrowings to finance the construction of the assets are capitalized during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item
of property, plant and equipment. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit of loss when
incurred. Spare parts that are considered essential to ensure continuous plant operation whose useful lives are
more than one year are capitalized and classified as plant, machinery and operating equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Expenditures incurred on testing and inspections, which are carried normally every 5 years, are capitalized as
part of the respective items of property, plant and equipment and amortized over the period of five years. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives which are as follows:

Number of years

Buildings and infrastructure 12-50
Plant, machinery and operating equipment 2-40
Vehicle and related equipment 6-25
Furniture and IT equipment 5-14

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle, less any lease incentive received. The estimated useful life of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment, except for leasehold land for which the estimated
useful life is considered to be the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate (if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
available). Lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. Any such re-measurement in the lease liability is adjusted against the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset or charged to profit or loss if carrying value of the related asset is zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less, and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(9) Intangible assets

Intangible assets, having no physical existence however separately identifiable and providing future economic
benefits, are initially recognized at purchase price and directly attributable costs. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Software and licenses

Software and licenses procured for various business use and having finite useful lives are presented as intangible
assets. Software and licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years
and 12-22 years, respectively.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

(h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

0] Financial instruments
The Company applied the following classification and measurement requirements for financial instruments.
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, which is generally on trade date. The Company derecognizes a financial asset when
the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers its rights to receive contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

A financial liability is derecognized from the statement of financial position when the Company has discharged its
obligation or the contract is cancelled or expires.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classified its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
(i) Those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost; or

(i) Fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial assets cash flows.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities as those measured at amortized cost. The classification of financial
assets is defined in Note 16.

Measurement

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair value with transaction costs
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. All other financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Company initially measures trade receivables at the
transaction price as trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component.

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms represent contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise items specifically designated as fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition and financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms represent contractual cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest. Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the movement in fair value attributable to changes in the Company’s own credit quality is calculated
by determining the changes in credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately
in other comprehensive income.

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated as fair value through profit or loss. Restrictions
are placed on the use of the designated fair value option and the classification can only be used:

- Inrespect of an entire contract if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives;

- If designating the financial instruments eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial
assets or liabilities on a different basis.

- If financial assets and liabilities are both managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

On initial recognition, for a financial asset the fair value option is only applied if it eliminates an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise from measuring items on a different basis. The above fair value option criteria
remains unchanged for a financial liability.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position
when the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

() Impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL)
on financial assets accounted for at amortized cost. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on
the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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(i) Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognized.

(ii) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are
not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized.

(iii) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower,
default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the entity on terms that the entity
would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a Company such as adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Company, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Company.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

The Company considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually
significant financial instruments found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Impairment losses for a financial instrument are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and reflected in
impairment for credit losses. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision. Such assets are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the amount of the expense in the statement of profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the provision. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company has adopted the simplified approach as allowed by IFRS 9 and measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables.

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s or CGU’s fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. The involvement of external valuers is decided by
the Company after discussion with the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company decides, after
discussions with the external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.
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At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents. The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset
and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. An assessment is made at each reporting
date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

(k) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of goods in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate method, less provision for impairment, if any. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are
credited to profit or loss against general and administrative expenses.

() Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined using the weighted
average basis and includes all cost incurred in the normal course of business in bringing each product to its
present condition and location. In the case of work in progress and finished goods, cost include the purchase cost,
the cost of refining and processing including an appropriate proportion of depreciation and production overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

The net realisable value of inventories is based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments, if any, with original maturities of three months or less from the purchase date.

(n) Zakat and tax

Zakat and income tax are provided for in accordance with the Saudi Arabian fiscal regulations. Zakat and income
taxes are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Additional amounts payable, if any, at the finalization of final
assessments are accounted for when such amounts are determined. The Zakat and income tax paid by the
Company are reimbursed by the respective founding shareholders except for general public shareholders and are
accordingly adjusted in their respective equity accounts.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised either in statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions with non-resident parties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law.

(0) Employees’ benefits
End of service benefits

The Company operates an unfunded post-employment defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in full in the period in which they occur in statement of comprehensive income. Re-measurements are
not reclassified to statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss on the earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
- the date on which the Company recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under cost of sales and general and administrative
expenses in the statement of profit or loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
- Netinterest expense or income.

The defined benefit liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past service costs.
Employees’ savings program

The Company operates a thrift savings program (the "program”) on behalf of its employees and the Company
matches the employee contribution with an equal, or lesser, contribution towards the program that is
commensurate with the employee’s participation seniority in the program. Participation in the program by the
regular employees who have completed their probationary period is optional and employees may choose the
option to invest or not to invest in the program. The contributions from the Company are recognized as employees’
expenses and are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The Company has arranged with the local bank,
being the custodian bank, to manage the program on behalf of the Company in accordance with Islamic Shari’ah
Law.

Employees’ Share Ownership Plan (ESOP)

The employees’ service cost of share options granted to employees under the Employees’ Share Ownership Plan
(ESOP) is measured by reference to the fair value of the Company’s shares on the date on which the options are
granted. This cost is recognized as an employee expense, over the period in which the performance and / or
service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (‘the vesting date’). The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best
estimate of the number of shares that will ultimately vest. The charge in the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

Shares purchased are kept with a bank acting as trustee for the ESOP and are carried at cost as a deduction
from equity until the options vest and the underlying shares are transferred to the employees. On the vesting date
of an individual option, the difference between the employee service cost and the purchase cost of the shares is
taken directly to retained earnings (accumulated losses) as an equity adjustment.
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(P) Segment reporting

Operating segment

An operating segment is group of assets and operations:
(i) engaged in revenue producing activities;

(ii) results of its operations are continuously analyzed by management in order to make decisions related to
resource allocation and performance assessment; and

(i) financial information is separately available.
()] Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

n Investment property

Investment properties are lands and buildings held for purposes rental income or capital appreciation or both.
Investment properties are measured in accordance with the cost model and depreciation is calculated on straight
line basis over their useful lives. Investment properties are derecognized when they are sold or when they are
occupied by the Company or if they are not held to increase their value.

Agreements with founding shareholders

The founding shareholders of the Company are Saudi Arabian Oil Company (“Saudi Aramco”) and Sumitomo
Chemical Company Limited (“Sumitomo Chemical”), each having 37.5% equity interest in the share capital of the
Company. The Company has entered into various agreements with founding shareholders and their affiliates
including among others some of the key agreements which are relevant to the financial reporting are summarised
below:

4.1 Crude oil feedstock supply agreement

On January 28, 2006, the Company entered into a Crude Oil Feedstock Supply Agreement (COSA) with Saudi
Aramco for the supply to the Company of its crude oil feedstock requirements in respect of the Complex, up to a
maximum supply of 400,000 barrels per day (bpd). The price at which Saudi Aramco sells the crude oil feedstock
to the Company is based, amongst other variable market factors, on international crude oil prices. The COSA is
valid for 30 years commencing from October 1, 2008.

4.2 Ethane feedstock supply agreements

The Company entered into Ethane Feedstock Supply Agreements on January 28, 2006 and March 16, 2015 with
Saudi Aramco for the supply to the Company of its ethane feedstock requirements in respect of the Complex, up
to a maximum aggregate supply of 125 million standard cubic feet per day (MMSCFD). The price at which Saudi
Aramco sells the ethane feedstock to the Company is the price commonly applied by Saudi Aramco to industrial
customers in the Kingdom. The Ethane Feedstock Supply Agreements are valid for 20 years commencing from
the respective effective dates stated in the Agreements.

4.3 Butane feedstock supply agreement

On January 28, 2006, the Company entered into a Butane Feedstock Supply Agreement with Saudi Aramco for
the supply to the Company of its butane feedstock requirements in respect of the Complex, up to a maximum
supply of 12,000 bpd. The price at which Saudi Aramco sells the butane feedstock to the Company is the price
commonly applied by Saudi Aramco to its industrial customers in the Kingdom. The Butane Feedstock Supply
Agreement is valid for 20 years commencing from December 1, 2008.

4.4 Petroleum product sales agreement

On July 3, 2006, the Company entered into a Petroleum Product Sales Agreement with Saudi Aramco for the
supply of fuel oil up to a maximum of 32 MBD monthly which the Company would, in turn, supply to Rabigh
Arabian Water and Electricity Company (RAWEC) for use as fuel for the provision of certain utilities to the
Company. The price at which Saudi Aramco sells the fuel oil to the Company is the government established price
prevailing on the date of product delivery to the Company. The agreement is valid for 25 years commencing from
June 1, 2008.
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Agreements with founding shareholders (continued)

4.5 Fuel oil supply agreement

On March 16, 2015, the Company entered into a Fuel Oil Supply Agreement with Saudi Aramco for the supply of
fuel oil up to a maximum of 20 MBD monthly which the Company would, in turn, supply to RAWEC for use as fuel
for the provision of certain utilities to the Company. The price at which Saudi Aramco sells the fuel oil to the
Company is the government established price prevailing on the date of product delivery to the Company. The
agreement is valid for 25 years commencing from February 15, 2018.

4.6 Allocated Sales gas supply agreement

On July 1, 2020, the Company entered into an Allocated Sales Gas Supply Agreement with Saudi Aramco for the
supply of Sales Gas up to a maximum of 50 MMSCF per day. The price at which Saudi Aramco sells the Sales
Gas to the Company is the prevailing domestic market price in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, as established by
the relevant Governmental entity from time to time. The Allocated Sales Gas Supply Agreement is valid for 20
years commencing from July 1, 2020.

4.7 Phase | Refined products offtake agreement

On June 13, 2019, the Company entered into a Phase | Refined Products Offtake Agreement (RPOA) with Saudi
Aramco as a “Buyer” of certain refined products listed therein produced by the Complex. The RPOA is valid for 5
years commencing from May 1, 2019, and is further extendable for another 5 year period.

4.8 Sulphur and Refined Products lifting and marketing agreement

On June 13, 2019, the Company entered into a Sulphur and Refined Products Lifting and Marketing Agreement
(SRPLMA) with Saudi Aramco as a global “marketer” of certain refined products listed therein produced by the
Complex. The SRPLMA is valid for 5 years commencing from May 1, 2019, and is further extendable for an
additional 5 year period.

4.9 Liquefied Petroleum Gas and Light Naphtha lifting and marketing agreements

On March 16, 2015, the Company entered into Liquefied Petroleum Gas and Light Naphtha Lifting & Marketing
Agreements with the founding shareholders as global “Marketers” of liquefied petroleum gas and light naphtha
from the Complex. The agreements are valid for 10 years commencing from November 30, 2018 and are further
extendable for an additional 5 year period. However, on November 22, 2021, the Company entered into a Phase
2 Light Naphtha Offtake Agreement (Note 4.10) with Saudi Aramco pursuant to which, effective from September
1, 2021, Saudi Aramco will purchase and offtake Light Naphtha from the Company in accordance with the terms
and conditions mentioned in the Phase 2 Light Naphtha Offtake Agreement and whereas Liquefied Petroleum
Gas shall continue to be lifted and marketed in accordance with the Liquefied Petroleum Gas and Light Naphtha
Lifting & Marketing Agreements.

4.10 Phase 2 Light Naphtha Offtake Agreement

On November 22, 2021, the Company entered into a Phase 2 Light Naphtha Offtake Agreement with Saudi
Aramco as “Buyer” of Light Naphtha produced by the Complex. This Agreement is effective from September 1,
2021 and is valid upto November 30, 2028, and is further extendable for another 5 year period.

4.11 Phase | Petrochemical products marketing agreements

On March 11, 2006 as amended on April 1, 2014, the Company entered into the Petrochemical Products
Marketing Agreements (PPMA) with Saudi Aramco and Sumitomo Chemical Asia PTE Limited as global
“Marketers” of Phase | petrochemical products produced by the Complex. The PPMAs are valid for 10 years
commencing from April 1, 2014, and are further extendable for another two consecutive 5 year periods. Pursuant
to Assignment and Assumption Agreements dated March 28, 2017, Saudi Aramco assigned its rights and
obligations under its respective PPMAs to its affiliate, Saudi Aramco Products Trading Company (ATC). Further,
pursuant to Assignment and Assumption Agreements dated February 11, 2020, ATC assigned its rights and
obligations under: (i) the Propylene Oxide PPMA, to Aramco Trading Singapore PTE. Ltd (ATS) and (ii) remaining
respective PPMAs, to Aramco Chemicals Company (ACC). During the year ended December 31, 2021, both ATS
and ACC transferred their rights and obligations under their respective PPMAs to Saudi Basic Industries
Corporation (SABIC) pursuant to Transfer Agreements effective from October 5, 2021.
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Agreements with founding shareholders (continued)
4.12 Phase Il Petrochemical products marketing agreements

On March 16, 2015, the Company entered into Petrochemical Products Marketing Agreements with Saudi Aramco
and Sumitomo Chemical Asia PTE Limited as global “Marketers” of Phase Il petrochemical products produced by
the Complex. The agreements are valid for 10 years commencing from the accumulated production date and are
further extendable for another 5 years. Pursuant to Assignment and Assumption Agreements dated February 11,
2020, Saudi Aramco assigned its rights and obligations under its PPMAs to its affiliates; Aramco Chemicals
Company (ACC) and Aramco Trading Singapore PTE Ltd. (ATS). During the year ended December 31, 2021,

ACC transferred its rights and obligations under its PPMAs to Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (SABIC),
Aramco Trading Company (ATC) and Arlanxeo Netherlands B.V and ATS transferred its rights and obligations
under its respective PPMAs to Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (SABIC) pursuant to Transfer Agreements
effective from October 5, 2021.

4.13 Domestic distribution agreement

On October 3, 2018, the Company entered into a Domestic Distribution Agreement (DDA) with ATC as local
“Distributor”. Pursuant to the terms of the DDA, the Company supplies certain petrochemical products to ATC for
onward sale and distribution within the Kingdom. Pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated
February 11, 2020 ATC transferred its rights and obligations under the DDA to ACC. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, ACC transferred its rights and obligations under the DDA to SABIC pursuant to a Transfer
Agreement effective from October 5, 2021. The supply and distribution obligations of each party with respect to a
given product will terminate upon the expiration or termination of the global product lifting and marketing
agreement corresponding to the same product.

4.14 Technology license agreements

The Company has entered into certain technology licence agreements with Sumitomo Chemical as “Licensor”.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Company licenses the relevant technologies to be used in the process units
for particular products. The agreements will remain valid for a period of 15 years commencing on the license grant
effective date (as so notified to the Company by Sumitomo Chemical).

4.15 Credit facility agreement

The Company entered into a Credit Facility Agreement (CFA) with its founding shareholders effective March 18,
2006. Pursuant to the terms of the CFA, the founding shareholders have made a loan facility of up to a maximum
aggregate amount of Saudi Riyals 6,206 million available to the Company, for the purposes of developing,
designing and constructing the Complex.

4.16 Revolving corporate facilities agreements

The Company has entered into revolving corporate facilities agreements with Saudi Aramco and Sumika Finance
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Chemical on September 30, 2020. Pursuant to the
terms of these facilities agreements, each lender has made a corporate facility of Saudi Riyals 2,812.5 million
(collectively Saudi Riyals 5,625 million) available to the Company.

4.17 Corporate facility agreement

The Company has entered into a corporate facility agreement with Saudi Aramco on September 30, 2020.
Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, Saudi Aramco has made available a facility of Saudi Riyals 1,875 million
to the Company.

4.18 Land lease agreement

On November 1, 2005 as amended and restated on March 16, 2015, the Company entered into a Land Lease
Agreement with Saudi Aramco. Pursuant to the terms of the Land Lease Agreement, Saudi Aramco leases
approximately 20 million square meters of land to the Company at a rate of Saudi Riyal 1 per square meter per
annum, for a period of 99 years, subject to extension for additional consecutive periods as may be agreed between
the parties.

4.19 Rabigh Plustech Park Land Lease Agreement

On November 21, 2021, the Company entered into Rabigh Plustech Park Land Lease Agreement with Saudi
Aramco. Pursuant to the Agreement, Saudi Aramco leases approximately 2.4 million square meters of land at
Plustech Park Site to the Company at a rate of Saudi Riyal 1 per square meter per annum, for a period of 35 years
effective from October 1, 2021 and subject to extension for additional consecutive periods as may be agreed
between the parties.
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Agreements with founding shareholders (continued)
4.20 Terminal lease agreement

On March 2, 2006, the Company entered into a Terminal Lease Agreement with Saudi Aramco in respect of the
existing Rabigh Marine Terminal. Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, Saudi Aramco grants to the Company
an exclusive right to use and operate the Rabigh Terminal Facilities and the Rabigh Terminal Site for a period of
30 years.

4.21 Rabigh community agreement

The Company has entered into a Rabigh community agreement with Saudi Aramco, effective October 1, 2014 for
a term of 25 years, in respect of leases of land and infrastructure facilities at an annual rate of Saudi Riyals 16.5
million and Saudi Riyals 18.2 million, respectively.

4.22 Secondment agreements

On June 12, 2006 and July 1, 2006, the Company entered into Secondment Agreements with Saudi Aramco and
Sumitomo Chemical respectively pursuant to which, the founding shareholders may, from time to time, second
certain personnel to the Company to assist in the conduct of its business and operations. Each agreement will
remain valid until such time as the relevant founding shareholder ceases to be a shareholder of the Company.

4.23 Services agreements

The Company has entered into certain services agreements with the founding shareholders and their affiliates in
respect of various operational and logistical support services. These agreements cover the provision of support
services to and by the Company such as human resources, training and recruitment, legal, utilities, information
technology, general management, technical and pre-marketing support. These agreements also cover the
ongoing technical support needed for continuous operations, being provided by Saudi Aramco, the ongoing
enhancements (such as refining and petrochemical process know-how) being provided by Sumitomo Chemical
and the marketing technical services, engineering and safety best practices and training being provided by both
founding shareholders. The Company pays for these services at the mutually agreed prices specified in each
agreement.

Segment information
5.1 Operating segment

The Company operates an integrated refinery and petrochemical complex. The primary format for segment
reporting is based on operating segments and is determined on the basis of management’s internal reporting
structure. The Management Committee (collectively considered to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker)
monitors the operating results of its operating segments for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. The Company’s segment profit measure is operating profit (loss).

The Company’s operating segments comprise of refined products and petrochemicals. Information as of and for
the year ended December 31, is summarized below:

2022 Refined products Petrochemicals Unallocated Total
Sales — external customers 40,576,066 15,376,415 - 55,952,481
Depreciation and amortization 556,585 2,482,509 - 3,039,094
Operating profit (loss) 1,466,407 (1,454,179) - 12,228
Total assets 20,120,408 43,270,330 2,187,994 65,578,732
Total liabilities 16,212,813 33,432,648 678,410 50,323,871
Capital expenditure 124,248 678,198 - 802,446
2021 Refined products Petrochemicals Unallocated Total
Sales — external customers 27,925,978 17,712,088 - 45,638,066
Depreciation and amortization 605,144 2,579,826 - 3,184,970
Operating (loss) profit (1,044,580) 4,237,051 - 3,192,471
Total assets 23,210,164 46,011,747 4,140,112 73,362,023
Total liabilities 21,595,430 42,744,913 715,769 65,056,112
Capital expenditure 135,977 342,285 - 478,262
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5 Segment information (continued)
The Company’s revenue from external customers amounts to Saudi Riyals 55,351 million (December 31, 2021:
Saudi Riyals 44,659 million) generated from 5 customers in the year ended December 31, 2022 (December 31,
2021: 8 customers).

Geographical information for the year ended December 31, is as follows:

2022 Middle East Asia Pacific Others Total
Sales
Refined products 35,489,542 5,071,353 15,171 40,576,066
Petrochemicals 3,994,407 10,955,714 426,294 15,376,415
Total 39,483,949 16,027,067 441,465 55,952,481
2021
Sales
Refined products 26,814,881 1,098,058 13,039 27,925,978
Petrochemicals 2,085,435 15,217,406 409,247 17,712,088
Total 28,900,316 16,315,464 422,286 45,638,066

Middle East market primarily includes Kingdom of Saudi Arabia whereas Asia Pacific primarily includes Singapore
and China.

5.2 Adjustments

Financial charges, financial income, Zakat and tax, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and certain
assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are managed on a Company-wide basis.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

5.3 Reconciliation of net (loss) profit
Notes 2022 2021
Operating profit 12,228 3,192,471
Financial charges 10 (1,359,448) (1,089,212)
Financial income 11 280,293 195,927
Net (loss) profit before Zakat and tax (1,066,927) 2,299,186
Zakat 24 (42,896) (40,089)
Tax 24 (5,058) (222,436)
Net (loss) profit after Zakat and tax (1,114,881) 2,036,661
6 Cost of sales

Notes 2022 2021
Raw materials, crude oil and spare parts consumed 49,926,517 36,726,439
Depreciation 13,14 2,790,501 2,939,930
Utilities consumed 341,729 403,925
Personnel costs 842,547 1,004,266
Repair and maintenance 329,022 347,268
Contracted services 111,140 49,528
Amortization 15 45,104 45,450
Insurance 80,136 81,359
Provision for slow moving spare parts and consumables 18 53,511 8,937
Other overheads 24,367 19,202
54,544,574 41,626,304

Changes in inventories of finished goods, raw materials
and spare parts and consumables used (275,826) (744,731)
54,268,748 40,881,573
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7 Other income, net

2022 2021
Port services 43,829 54,256
Gain on sale of scrap sales 45,276 92,989
Miscellaneous income 16,406 8,938
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,033) (4,284)
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 45 840
Other expenses (3,359) (697)
101,164 152,042

8 Selling and marketing expenses
2022 2021
Freight charges 107,350 76,192
Deductibles (see below) 851,261 742,907
Others 4,379 15,481
962,990 834,580

Deductibles mainly comprise of handling charges, insurance, customs and storage charges for inventories.

9 General and administrative expenses
Notes 2022 2021
Personnel costs 385,047 463,424
Depreciation 13,14 165,029 162,804
Repairs and maintenance 87,194 77,714
Impairment loss on receivables - 627
IT, networking and data communication 65,189 57,591
Amortization 15 38,460 36,786
Travelling 11,842 9,668
Rent 688 750
Professional fees 20,814 30,325
Insurance 3,813 2,677
Stationery, telex and telephone 7,128 8,671
Others 24,475 30,447
809,679 881,484
10 Financial charges
2022 2021
Interest on loans and borrowings 923,992 679,219
Interest on finance leases 379,094 397,235
Others 56,362 12,758
1,359,448 1,089,212
11 Financial income
Note 2022 2021
Interest on loans and refinancing fee from Rabigh
Arabian Water and Electricity Cgmpany (RAWEgC) 11.1 236,250 175832
Interest on time deposits 44,043 45
Others - 20,050
280,293 195,927
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Financial income (continued)

111

The Company entered into various agreements namely Water and Energy Conversion Agreement
(WECA), Facility Agreement and RAWEC Shareholders’ Agreement (“Phase | Agreements”), dated
August 7, 2005 as amended on October 31, 2011 to develop a plant, on build, own and operate basis,
to supply desalinated water, steam and power to the Company, and an Amended and Restated
Agreement (“Phase Il Expansion Project Agreement”), dated March 28, 2006 as amended subsequently
on March 9, 2015 with RAWEC to expand the existing independent water, steam and power facilities to
meet the requirements of Phase Il Expansion Project. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company
provided loans to RAWEC amounting to Saudi Riyals 3.9 billion (Phase 1) carrying interest rate of 5.76%
per annum and Saudi Riyals 3.3 hillion (Phase Il Expansion Project) carrying interest rate of 5.7% per
annum. The loans were being settled in monthly repayments against capacity payments. These loans
were secured by the assets of RAWEC.

The Company and RAWEC entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which was formally
signed on January 11, 2022, whereby RAWEC intends to borrow under a refinancing facility made
available to RAWEC by a commercial bank to prepay the entire loan and its related interest cost accrued
on the loan amount to the Company. Further, in accordance to the terms and conditions of the MOU,
RAWEC would also pay the Company; a refinancing fee (the “refinancing fee”) amounting to Saudi Riyals
236.25 million in order to share the future benefits of its refinancing in a fair and equitable manner,
subject to release of all the securities on RAWEC'’s assets (the “securities”) by the Company. On
December 30, 2021, RAWEC paid off the entire loan outstanding to the Company in accordance with
the MOU and during the year ended December 31, 2022, it paid the refinancing fee upon release by the
Company of securities on RAWEC’s assets.

(Loss) earnings per share

Basic (loss) earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss) profit for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss) profit for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of shares has been retrospectively adjusted for the prior year to reflect the element

of the rights issue as required by IAS 33, “Earnings per share” as follows:

2022 2021
Issued ordinary shares at January 1 876,000 876,000
Rights issue adjustment 528,699 275,215
Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 1,404,699 1,151,215

The weighted average number of shares for the prior year is computed using an adjustment factor of 1.31, which is

a ratio of the theoretical ex-right price of Saudi Riyals 15.29 and the closing price per share of Saudi Riyals 20.10
per share on June 13, 2022, the last day on which the shares were traded before the rights issue.

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated as follows:

2022 2021
(Loss) profit for the year for basic and diluted earnings per share (1,114,881) 2,036,661
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
(number of shares in thousands) 1,404,699 1,151,215
Adjustment for the effect of dilution in weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year due to ESOP (number of shares in
337 213
thousands)
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share (Saudi Riyals) (0.79) 1.77
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Property, plant and equipment

Plant, machinery Vehicles Capital
Buildings and and operating and related Furniture and projects in
Notes infrastructure equipment equipment IT equipment progress Total

Cost
January 1, 2021 10,947,812 57,193,576 44,839 586,397 1,664,960 70,437,584
Additions - 142,698 - - 313,973 456,671
Transfers
- Within property, plant and equipment 176,584 756,294 3,593 18,849 (955,320) -
- Intangible assets 15 - - - - (21,591) (21,591)
Disposals - (43,494) (1,462) (4,350) - (49,306)
December 31, 2021 11,124,396 58,049,074 46,970 600,896 1,002,022 70,823,358
Additions - 241,365 - - 557,100 798,465
Transfers

- Within property, plant and equipment 69,286 648,489 40 15,083 (732,898) -

- Intangible assets 15 - - - - (3,981) (3,981)
Disposals (385) (4,030) (408) (6,129) - (10,952)
December 31, 2022 11,193,297 58,934,898 46,602 609,850 822,243 71,606,890
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2021 2,853,821 21,217,527 37,457 279,170 - 24,387,975
Charge for the year 240,047 2,103,866 1,352 44,908 - 2,390,173
Released on disposals - (39,210) (1,462) (4,350) - (45,022)
December 31, 2021 3,093,868 23,282,183 37,347 319,728 - 26,733,126
Charge for the year 242,747 1,955,500 1,481 46,357 - 2,246,085
Released on disposals (185) (3,584) (408) (5,742) - (9,919)
December 31, 2022 3,336,430 25,234,099 38,420 360,343 - 28,969,292
Carrying Value:
At December 31, 2022 7,856,867 33,700,799 8,182 249,507 822,243 42,637,598
At December 31, 2021 8,030,528 34,766,891 9,623 281,168 1,002,022 44,090,232
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Notes 2022 2021
Cost of sales 6 2,132,121 2,281,550
General and administrative expenses 9 113,964 108,623
2,246,085 2,390,173
Leases
141 Right-of-use assets
Land, buildings
and Plant and
infrastructure machinery Vehicles Total
Cost
January 1, 2021 1,234,445 11,660,838 98,318 12,993,601
Additions 44,172 - 11,767 55,939
Derecognition (17,804) - (651) (18,455)
December 31, 2021 1,260,813 11,660,838 109,434 13,031,085
Additions - - 51,342 51,342
Derecognition - - (1,972) (1,972)
December 31, 2022 1,260,813 11,660,838 158,804 13,080,455
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2021 232,912 1,369,888 49,226 1,652,026
Charge for the year 35,285 652,980 24,296 712,561
Released on derecognition (2,210) - (250) (2,460)
December 31, 2021 265,987 2,022,868 73,272 2,362,127
Charge for the year 35,537 652,980 20,928 709,445
Released on derecognition - - (1,265) (1,265)
December 31, 2022 301,524 2,675,848 92,935 3,070,307
Carrying value
At December 31, 2022 959,289 8,984,990 65,869 10,010,148
At December 31, 2021 994,826 9,637,970 36,162 10,668,958
Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:
Notes 2022 2021
Cost of sales 6 658,380 658,380
General and administrative expenses 9 51,065 54,181
709,445 712,561
14.2 Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities as at December 31, are as follows:
2022 2021
. Present value Present value
Minimum lease S o
of minimum of minimum
payments
Interest lease payments lease payments
Land, buildings and infrastructure 2,622,391 1,532,332 1,090,059 1,113,331
Plant and machinery 12,153,276 2,612,544 9,540,732 10,082,695
Vehicles 72,762 5,712 67,050 37,606
14,848,429 4,150,588 10,697,841 11,233,632
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Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities as at December 31, are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2022 2021

Current portion 602,365 588,445
Non-current portion 10,095,476 10,645,187
10,697,841 11,233,632

The minimum lease payments together with the present value of minimum lease payments as at December 31 are
as follows:

2022 2021
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Within twelve months 961,665 602,365 965,659 588,445
One to five years 3,788,082 2,565,374 3,778,230 2,458,128
More than five years 10,098,682 7,530,102 11,013,638 8,187,059
Total minimum lease payments 14,848,429 10,697,841 15,757,527 11,233,632
Less: finance charges (4,150,588) - (4,523,895) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 10,697,841 10,697,841 11,233,632 11,233,632

14.3 During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company’s expenses relating to short-term leases and low
value assets are Saudi Riyals 1,974 thousands (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 450 thousands) and
Saudi Riyals 1,764 thousands (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 2,338 thousands), respectively.

Intangible assets

Notes Software Licenses Other Total
Cost
January 1, 2021 435,626 430,326 5,154 871,106
Additions 13 21,591 - - 21,591
December 31, 2021 457,217 430,326 5,154 892,697
Additions 13 3,981 - - 3,981
December 31, 2022 461,198 430,326 5,154 896,678
Amortization
January 1, 2021 278,935 159,800 860 439,595
Amortization for the year 43,394 38,105 737 82,236
December 31, 2021 322,329 197,905 1,597 521,831
Amortization for the year 45,070 37,759 735 83,564
December 31, 2022 367,399 235,664 2,332 605,395
Carrying value:
December 31, 2022 93,799 194,662 2,822 291,283
December 31, 2021 134,888 232,421 3,557 370,866

Amortization for the year has been allocated as follows:

Notes 2022 2021

Cost of sales 6 45,104 45,450
General and administrative expenses 9 38,460 36,786
83,564 82,236
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Financial assets and financial liabilities

16.1 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Long-term loans: Notes 2022 2021
Loans to employees 16.1.1 248,691 184,324
Less: current portion of long-term loans (4,151) (5,223)
Non-current portion of long-term loans 244,540 179,101
Trade receivables 16.1.2 5,377,367 8,257,121

16.1.1 The Company's eligible employees are provided with loans under an employees’ home ownership
program. The cost of the land is advanced to employees free of interest cost provided the employee serves
the Company for a minimum period of four years while the construction cost of the house is amortized and
repayable free of interest to the Company to the extent of 90% over a period of seventeen years. The
remaining 10% is amortized over the term of the loan (seventeen years). These loans are secured by
mortgages on the related housing units. Ownership of the housing unit is transferred to the employee upon
full payment of the loan.

16.1.2 Trade receivables of the Company are as follows:

Note 2022 2021
Trade receivables — related parties 26 5,344,931 8,201,264
Trade receivables — others 32,436 55,857

5,377,367 8,257,121

Following is the ageing matrix used by the Company for analysis of trade receivables:

Neither Past due but not impaired
past Less More than  More than 24
due nor than6 6to12 12to18 18to24 24 months
Total impaired months months months months months impaired
2022 5,377,367 5,231,094 94,399 50,388 318 - 1,168 :
2021 8,257,121 8,102,778 148,659 4,398 136 - 1,150 :

Financial assets also include cash and cash equivalents amounting to Saudi Riyals 2,045 million (December 31,
2021: Saudi Riyals 3,972 million) and other receivables amounting to Saudi Riyals 59 million (December 31, 2021:
Saudi Riyals 97 million) that are measured at amortized cost.

16.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
2022 2021

Investment in RAWEC 10,000 16,412

The Company holds 1% shares in the capital of RAWEC, a Saudi limited liability company. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, RAWEC decreased its share capital. However, the shareholding of the Company in RAWEC
remained the same at 1%.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

16.3 Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Loans, borrowings and other long-term liability

Notes 2022 2021
Loans from banks and financial institutions 16.3.1 20,037,980 23,179,254
Loan from Saudi Industrial Development Fund (SIDF) 16.3.2 3,145,908 3,243,426
Loans and facilities from founding shareholders and their
affiliates 16.3.3 2,179,232 12,157,872

Other facilities 16.3.4 649,576 111,458
Other long-term liability 16.3.5 - 36,618

26,012,696 38,728,628
Less: current portion (13,435,306) (18,898,428)
Non-current portion 12,577,390 19,830,200
Trade and other payables 16.3.6 12,117,925 12,397,978

16.3.1 Loans from banks and financial institutions

The Company had entered into Consortium Loan Agreements with commercial banks and financial institutions for
development, design, and construction of integrated refining and petrochemical complex. The facilities available
under these Consortium Loan Agreements were utilized in full by July 2008. The loan was repayable in semi-annual
instalments from June 2011 to December 2021 and has been fully repaid.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company further entered into Consortium Loan Agreements with
commercial banks and financial institutions for Phase Il Expansion Project. The facilities available under these loan
agreements amount to Saudi Riyals 30,630 million which have been utilized in full by the Company. The loan
amounting to Saudi Riyals 19,380 million is repayable in semi-annual instalments from June 2019 to June 2031.
During the year ended December 2020, a portion of loan amounting to Saudi Riyals 3,312 million has been repaid
from the proceeds of loan from SIDF (see Note 16.3.2). During the year ended December 31, 2022, the equity
bridge loan guaranteed by founding shareholders amounting to Saudi Riyals 11,250 million has been partially repaid
to an extent of Saudi Riyals 1,940.49 million out of the proceeds of the rights issue (Note 20). The equity bridge
loan had an initial maturity of July 1, 2019, which during the year ended December 31, 2022, has been further
rescheduled to March 20, 2023 (see Note 2).

The aforementioned loans are denominated in US Dollar and Saudi Riyal and bear financial charges based on
prevailing market rates. The loan agreements include financial and operational covenants which among other
things; require certain financial ratios to be maintained. The loans are secured by property, plant and equipment
and cash and cash equivalents of the Company with carrying values of Saudi Riyals 2,045 million and Saudi Riyals
42,638 million, respectively.

16.3.2 Loan from SIDF

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company entered into a loan agreement with SIDF to replace a
portion of the loans for Phase Il Expansion Project (see Note 16.3.1). The facility available under this loan agreement
amounts to Saudi Riyals 3,600 million and is utilized as at December 31, 2022. The loan is repayable in unequal
semi-annual instalments commencing from Rabi Aakhir 1443H (corresponding to November 2021) to Shawwal
1453H (corresponding to January 2032). Upfront fee amounting to Saudi Riyals 288 million was deducted at the
time of receipt of the loan and is amortised over the loan term. The loan also bears a follow up fee to be paid on
semi-annual basis. The loan has certain covenants, which among other things requires certain financial ratios to be
maintained. The loan facility is secured by a mortgage on the property, plant and equipment of the Company
amounting to Saudi Riyals 7,200 million.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

16.3.3 Loans and facilities from founding shareholders and their affiliates

(@) Loans from the founding shareholders were availed as part of the Credit Facility Agreement and bear
financial charges. The loans were secured by promissory note issued by the Company in favor of each
shareholder equivalent to drawdowns. As part of the Company’s equity restructuring transaction (Note 20),
the loans from founding shareholders and related accumulated interest was settled through the net offering
proceeds of the Rights Issue by capitalizing the principal and accrued interest amounting to Saudi Riyals
5,962.5 million due to the founding shareholders under the Credit Facility Agreement. The remaining
accumulated interest as at December 31, 2022 amounting to Saudi Riyals 45.1 million has been transferred
to other payables (Note 16.3.6).

2022 2021

Saudi Aramco - 2,287,500

Sumitomo Chemical - 2,287,500
Accumulated interest:

Saudi Aramco - 695,737

Sumitomo Chemical - 695,737

- 5,966,474

(b) The Company entered into the following agreements in 2020:

- Revolving corporate facilities with Saudi Aramco and Sumika Finance Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sumitomo Chemical, based on prevailing market rates. The facilities available under each of
these agreements amount to Saudi Riyals 2,812.5 million (collectively Saudi Riyals 5,625 million) and are
utilized to the extent of Saudi Riyals 2,175 million as at December 31, 2022. These facilities are secured
by promissory notes issued by the Company in favor of each lender.

- Corporate facility agreement with Saudi Aramco. The facility available under this agreement amounts to
Saudi Riyals 1,875 million and is unutilized as at December 31, 2022. The facility bears financial charges
based on prevailing market rates. The facility is secured by promissory note issued by the Company in
favor of Saudi Aramco to the extent of drawdown made.

16.3.4 Other facilities

(@) The Company has working capital facilities of Saudi Riyals 1,875 million with local commercial banks on
prevailing market rates. During the year ended December 31, 2022, drawdowns and repayments
amounting to Saudi Riyals 3,989.5 million and Saudi Riyals 3,342.5 million, respectively have been made
by the Company with a closing balance of Saudi Riyals 647 million as at December 31, 2022 (December
31, 2021: Saudi Riyals Nil).

(b) The Company has a credit facility of Saudi Riyals 375 million with a local commercial bank on prevailing
market rates. As at December 31, 2022, the facility has been unutilized by the Company (December 31,
2021: Saudi Riyals 111 million).

16.3.5 Other long-term liability

Other long-term liability represents withholding tax on the remaining unpaid accumulated interest on loan from
Sumitomo Chemical (see Note 16.3.3 a) in accordance with Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. The balance as at
December 31, 2022 amounting to Saudi Riyals 1.2 million has been transferred to other payables (Note 16.3.6).
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

16.3.6 Trade and other payables

2022 2021
Trade payables:
- Related parties 10,865,318 10,978,479
- Others 1,152,886 1,325,595
12,018,204 12,304,074
Other payables — related parties (see below) 99,721 93,904
12,117,925 12,397,978

Other payables principally relate to payments made by founding shareholders on behalf of the Company in respect
of seconded employees and other charges (see Note 4.22 and 4.23) and remaining accumulated interest on
shareholders loans (Note 16.3.3 a).

16.4 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

Financial risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical
to the Company’s continuing operations and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to respective responsibilities. The Company’s policy is to monitor business risks through strategic
planning process.

Risk management structure

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
management strategies and principles.

Audit committee

The audit committee assists the Board in carrying out its responsibilities with respect to assessing the quality and
integrity of financial reporting and risk management, the internal audit thereof and the soundness of the internal
controls of the Company.

Internal audit

All key operational, financial and risk management processes are audited by internal audit. Internal audit examines
the adequacy of the relevant policies and procedures and the Company’s compliance with internal policies and
regulatory guidelines. Internal audit discusses the results of all assessment with management and reports its
findings and recommendations to audit committee.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated are summarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk principally arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, long-term loans and other
receivables. Cash and cash equivalents are placed with banks with sound credit ratings. The majority of trade
receivables representing 99.4% (December 31, 2021: 99.3%) is from founding shareholders and their affiliates with
historically strong credit ratings, and is stated at respective realizable values. In the event of disagreement on any
invoice, the marketer is required to pay the full value of the invoice prior to resolution of the disagreement. The
Company does not obtain collaterals over receivables. As at December 31, 2022, there were overdue debts
equivalent to 3% (December 31, 2021: 2%) of trade receivables of Company’s allowed credit periods. The loans
receivable from employees are secured by mortgages on the related housing units. The Company is not exposed
to significant credit risk on other receivables.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Commodity price risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the prevailing market prices on the refined and petrochemical
products it produces. The Company’s policy is to manage these risks through the use of contract-based prices with
major customers, based on the agreements entered by the Company (Note 4). The Company does not enter into
commodity price hedging arrangements.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks are the exposures associated with the effect of fluctuations in the
prevailing interest rates on the Company’s financial positions and cash flows. The Company'’s interest rate risks
arise mainly from its short-term deposits, loans from banks and financial institutions and loans from founding
shareholders and their affiliates, which are at floating rate of interest and are subject to re-pricing on a regular basis.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost approximate their carrying amounts.
Interest rate sensitivity

As at December 31, 2022, it is estimated that a general increase / decrease of 50 basis points in floating interest
rates on loans and borrowings, with all other variables held constant, would increase / decrease the Company’s
profit (loss) for the year by approximately Saudi Riyals 114.1 million (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 170.2
million).

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals and US Dollars. The Company monitors the
fluctuation in currency exchange rates and believes that currency risk is not significant to the Company.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its commitments associated with financial liabilities
when they fall due.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on regular basis and the Company ensures that sufficient liquid funds are
available to meet any commitments as they arise. The Company aims to maintain sufficient level of its cash and
cash equivalents to meet expected cash outflows of financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables (Note 16.3.6), loans and borrowings (Note
16.3.1, 16.3.2, 16.3.3, 16.3.4 and 16.3.5), lease liabilities (Note 14.2) and accrued expenses and other liabilities
(Note 23). All financial liabilities except for loans and borrowings, lease liabilities, are non-commission bearing and
expected to be settled within 12 months from the date of statement of financial position.

The following analysis provides the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant, except for lease liabilities, which are stated at minimum
lease payments.

Less than Three to twelve  One to five Over five
2022 three months months years years
Loans and borrowings 10,108,939 2,094,893 8,249,743 9,607,747
Lease liabilities 232,911 728,754 3,788,082 10,098,682
Trade and other payables 10,912,983 1,204,942 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 744,273 - - -
21,999,106 4,028,589 12,037,825 19,706,429
Less than Three to twelve  One to five Over five
2021 three months months years years
Loans and borrowings 111,458 12,998,439 12,808,750 14,672,046
Lease liabilities 234,403 731,256 3,778,230 11,013,638
Trade and other payables 11,034,367 1,363,611 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,874,415 - - -
13,254,643 15,093,306 16,586,980 25,685,684
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit worthiness
and capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Company considers share capital, retained earnings (accumulated losses) and statutory reserve as Company’s
capital. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
Cash in hand 75 233
Cash at banks - current accounts 2,044,718 3,971,728

2,044,793 3,971,961

Inventories
2022 2021
Raw materials (at cost) 520,616 536,257
Work-in-progress (at net realizable value) 1,150,901 1,001,753
Finished goods (at net realizable value) 1,172,287 1,064,892
Goods-in-transit (at cost) 1,816 11,468
Spare parts and consumables (het of provision) 1,183,145 1,192,080

4,028,765 3,806,450

During the year ended December 31, 2022, in order to carry the inventory at net realizable value, the net movement
in provision for inventory except for spare parts and consumables has resulted in Saudi Riyals 332.2 million
(December 31, 2021: Nil) expense under cost of sales.

Movement in provision for slow moving spare parts and consumables is as follows:

Note 2022 2021

January 1 115,807 106,870
Additions 6 53,511 8,937
Utilised (893) -
December 31 168,425 115,807

Prepayments and other receivables

Note 2022 2021

Prepayments 109,049 59,373
Advances to suppliers 79,445 107,387
Advance tax and value added tax 541,411 1,587,995
Other receivables, net 25,112 60,873
755,017 1,815,628

Due from related parties 26 50,716 39,079

805,733 1,854,707
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Share capital

The Company’s authorised and issued share capital consists of 1,671 million shares of Saudi Riyals 10 each
(December 31, 2021: 876 million shares of Saudi Riyals 10 each). The founding shareholders of the Company are
Saudi Aramco and Sumitomo Chemical and each of them hold 37.5% of the shares.

On June 8, 2022, the Company’s shareholders approved the increase in the Company’s share capital through a
rights issue with a total value of Saudi Riyals 7,950 million as proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company.
Pursuant to the rights issue, the Company increased its share capital from Saudi Riyals 8,760 million to Saudi Riyals
16,710 million. The net offering proceeds were used to repay the loans and related accrued interest from founding
shareholders under the Credit Facility Agreement (note 16.3.3 a) by capitalizing the amounts due to the founding
shareholders under such agreement and towards the partial repayment of the equity bridge loans (note 16.3.1).

The cost of rights issue amounting to Saudi Riyals 47.01 million is recognized in statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company is required to
transfer each year at least 10% of its net income, after absorbing accumulated losses, to a statutory reserve until
such reserve equal 30% of its share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

Employees’ benefits

Notes 2022 2021
End of service benefits 22.1 522,089 611,627
Employees’ share ownership plan 22.2 5,339 4,510
Employees’ savings program 22.3 197,765 169,477
Total employees’ benefits 725,193 785,614
Less: Current portion of employees’ benefits under accrued
expenses and other liabilities (5,468) (5,969)
Non-current portion of employees’ benefits 719,725 779,645
22.1 End of service benefits
2022 2021
Company’s employees 517,044 605,754
Founding shareholders’ seconded employees 5,045 5,873
522,089 611,627

The Company has a post-employment defined benefit plan for its employees. The benefits are required by Saudi
Arabian Labor and Workman Law (labor law). The benefit is based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and
their cumulative years of service, as stated in the labor law.

The following table summarizes the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income and movement in present value of defined benefit obligation in the
statement of financial position.

Net benefit expense recognised in statement of profit or loss: 2022 2021
Current service cost 61,558 69,485
Interest cost on benefit obligation 16,249 13,745
77,807 83,230

Net benefit expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income: 2022 2021
Actuarial gain arising from experience (523) (11,308)
Actuarial loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 3,011
Actuarial gain arising from changes in financial assumptions (153,883) (34,825)
(154,406) (43,122)
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Employees’ benefits (continued)

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation: 2022 2021
January 1 605,754 628,760
Current service cost 61,558 69,485
Interest cost on benefit obligation 16,249 13,745
Actuarial gain arising from experience (523) (11,308)
Actuarial loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 3,011
Actuarial gain arising from changes in financial assumptions (153,883) (34,825)
Benefits paid during the year (12,111) (63,114)
December 31 517,044 605,754

Significant assumptions used in determining the post-employment defined benefit obligation include the following:

2022 2021

Discount rate 5.25% 2.75%
Salary escalation rate 4% 4%
SOA RP14 SOA RP14

In service mortality Total Dataset  Total Dataset

mortality  mortality with
with scale scale MP-14
MP-14
Withdrawal before normal retirement age Age-wise Age-wise

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 2022 is 9.7 years (December
31, 2021: 11.9 years).

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions on the defined benefit obligation is shown below:

Discount rate:

2022 2021
1% increase in discount rate 470,962 540,666
1% decrease in discount rate 571,042 683,773
Salary escalation rate:
2022 2021
1% increase in salary escalation rate 571,238 682,009
1% decrease in salary escalation rate 469,992 540,765
Voluntary exit rate:
2022 2021
5% increase at each age 523,514 561,055
5% decrease at each age 498,611 671,882

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.
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Employees’ benefits (continued)

22.2 Employees’ share ownership plan

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Board of Directors approved the implementation and operation of
an Employees’ share ownership plan (“ESOP”), which provides 5 years’ service awards to certain levels of staff.

The Company arranged with a commercial bank to subscribe for 1.5 million shares during the IPO at the offer price
of Saudi Riyals 21 per share. These ESOP shares are held by the bank in trust for the Company’s eligible employees
that will become eligible for an award under the plan. Any of the ESOP shares that do not become issuable to
eligible employees will be dealt with by the bank in accordance with the Company’s instructions, and any disposal
proceeds will be for the account of the Company. The Company recognized the liability through provision by
amortizing the total cost of the ESOP shares on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years.

Until the ESOP shares become vested and are transferred to the eligible employees, they are accounted for as a
deduction from shareholders’ equity. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has vested 6,400
shares to eligible employees due for entittement (December 31, 2021: 4,800 shares).

The carrying amount of the ESOP at December 31, 2022 is Saudi Riyals 5.3 million (December 31, 2021: Saudi
Riyals 4.5 million).
22.3 Employees’ savings program

The Company operates a thrift savings program (the "Program”) on behalf of its employees and the Company
matches the employee contribution with an equal, or lesser, contribution towards the Program that is commensurate
with the employee's participation seniority in the Program.

Balance in employees’ savings program is presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2022 2021
Current portion (included in accrued expenses and other liabilities) 613 404
Non-current portion 197,152 169,073
197,765 169,477

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Note 2022 2021
Accrued bonus 28,119 150,278
Customer advances 29,751 91,761
Social security payable 8,538 8,679
Withholding tax and value added tax payable 415,654 1,349,261
Accrued expenses 395 477
Dividend payable 1,029 1,045
Others 9,557 5,221
493,043 1,606,722
Due to related parties 26 251,230 267,693

744,273 1,874,415
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Zakat and tax
24.1 Charge for the year

Zakat and tax for the year ended December 31, is as follows:

Note 2022 2021

Zakat for the year - 40,089
Income tax for the year - 1,725
Deferred tax expense for the year (see below) 16,638 223,945
Zakat for the preceding years 24.3 42,896 -
59,534 265,759

Income tax and deferred tax for the year ended December 31, has been recognised as follows:

Note 2022 2021
Statement of profit or loss:
- Income tax - 1,725
- Deferred tax (see below) 5,058 220,711
Tax expense for the year 24.2 5,058 222,436
Statement of comprehensive income — Deferred tax expense 11,580 3,234

24.2 Zakat base and tax expense reconciliation
Zakat for the year ended December 31, is attributable to the following components:

2022 2021
Share capital, reserves and carried forward losses 15,546,824 8,773,769
Liabilities and provisions 26,474,614 39,827,208
Assets (44,513,632)  (46,073,518)
Zakat base (2,492,194) 2,527,459
Zakat base attributable to Saudi founding shareholder and
general public shareholding (2022 and 2021: 62.5%) (1,557,621) 1,579,662
Zakat for the year - 40,089

Some of the above-mentioned amounts have been adjusted in arriving at the Zakat charge for the year. Since Zakat
base is negative for the year ended December 31, 2022, Zakat charge is Nil.

Reconciliation between (loss) profit before Zakat and tax at applicable tax rate and tax expense for the year ended
December 31, is as follows:

2022 2021
(Loss) profit before Zakat and tax (1,066,927) 2,299,186
(Loss) profit subject to tax (2022 and 2021: 37.5%) (400,098) 862,195
Tax at applicable tax rate (20%) (80,020) 172,439
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses:
Interest expense in excess of allowable limit 71,180 35,921
Withholding tax 4,078 2,915
Educational assistance 186 214
Others 9,634 10,947
Tax expense for the year 5,058 222,436
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Zakat and tax (continued)
24.3 Status of assessments

The Company has filed its Zakat and income tax returns with the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) up to the
financial year 2021 and obtained the Zakat certificate valid until April 30, 2023. The Company’s Zakat and tax
assessments have been finalized by ZATCA up to 2008, 2011 up to 2016, 2019 up to 2020.

ZATCA had issued assessments for the years 2009 and 2010 by raising additional Zakat and tax demand of Saudi
Riyals 43.3 million and Saudi Riyals 0.2 million, respectively. The Company had filed an appeal for the years 2009 and
2010 with Tax Violations and Disputes Appellate Committee (TVDAC) and submitted a bank guarantee amounting to
Saudi Riyals 43.5 million. During the year ended December 31, 2021, TVDAC issued its decision reducing the additional
Zakat and tax demand to Saudi Riyals 31.4 million and Saudi Riyals Nil respectively and referred certain matters to the
Tax Violations and Disputes Resolution Committee (TVDRC) for re-adjudication. The Company had requested TVDAC
for reconsideration of their decision and also submitted its request to TVDRC for the matters referred to them by TVDAC.
Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2022 as a result of raising the matter with ZATCA'’s Alternate Dispute
Resolution Committee, the Company received the final demand for additional Zakat of Saudi Riyals 31.3 million on
February 20, 2023. The Company has provided for this additional Zakat in these financial statements and has duly
settled.

ZATCA had issued revised assessments for the years 2017 and 2018 by raising additional Zakat and tax demand of
Saudi Riyals 100.7 million and Saudi Riyals 10.5 million, respectively. The Company registered an appeal against the
revised assessment with TVDRC. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the TVDRC held the hearing for years
2017 and 2018 and issued its decision reducing the Zakat and tax demand to Saudi Riyals 94.7 million and Saudi
Riyals 0.5 million respectively. The Company has filed an appeal against the decision of TVDRC with TVDAC.

The management expects a favourable outcome against the aforementioned additional demands relating to the open
years. If any additional Zakat and tax arises on finalization of the aforementioned additional demands, it is recoverable
to the extent of Saudi Riyals 18.8 million and Saudi Riyals 0.7 million for Zakat and tax, respectively, from the founding
shareholders of the Company.

Zakat and tax asset and liability

25.1 The movement of Zakat and income tax payable is as follows:

Notes 2022 2021
January 1 41,814 -
Charge for the current year 24.1 - 41,814
Adjustment for preceding years 24.3 42,896 -
Payments during the year (53,299) -
December 31 31,411 41,814

25.2 The component wise movement of deferred tax asset is as follows:

Tax Trade
Property, losses receivables
plant and carried Employees’ and
equipment forward benefits inventories Others Total
2022
January 1 (1,562,591) 1,646,274 45,872 8,685 2,752 140,992

Tax (expense) income

recognised in statement

of profit or loss (152,700) 136,248 4,865 3,947 2,582 (5,058)
Tax expense recognised in

statement of

comprehensive income - - (11,580) - - (11,580)
December 31 (1,715,291) 1,782,522 39,157 12,632 5,334 124,354
2021
January 1 (1,344,864) 1,646,849 48,398 10,146 4,408 364,937
Tax expense recognised in

statement of profit or loss (217,727) (575) 708 (1,461) (1,656) (220,711)

Tax expense recognised in
statement of
comprehensive income - - (3,234) - - (3,234)

December 31 (1,562,591) 1,646,274 45,872 8,685 2,752 140,992
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions and balances

Related parties comprise the founding shareholders of the Company being Saudi Aramco and Sumitomo Chemical,
their subsidiaries and associates and other companies with common directorship with significant influence on other
companies and key management personnel.

26.1 Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties arise mainly from purchases, sales of refined and petrochemical products, credit
facilities, secondments and various lease arrangements and are undertaken at approved contractual terms.
Significant related party transactions for the year ended December 31, are summarized as follows:

2022 2021

Saudi Aramco and its associated companies

Purchase of goods 48,714,149 35,482,296
Sale of refined products and petrochemical products 48,121,386 35,718,493
Financial charges 134,790 175,222
Rentals 23,372 21,943
Secondees’ costs 14,149 21,499
Service and other cost charges, net 20,841 493
Sumitomo Chemical and its associated companies

Purchase of goods 71,771 182,893
Sale of petrochemical products 6,405,992 8,218,070
Financial charges 75,294 99,624
Rentals - 265
Secondees’ costs 6,144 18,733
Service and other cost charges, net 108 4,356

26.2 Balances with related parties

Significant balances as at December 31, arising from transactions with related parties are as follows:

Notes 2022 2021
Saudi Aramco and its associated companies
Loans and borrowings 16 1,089,616 6,360,363
Trade and other payables 16 10,924,407 11,057,768
Trade and other receivables 16,19 4,885,978 7,023,117
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23 233,385 168,149
Employees’ benefits 156 242
Sumitomo Chemical and its associated companies
Loans and borrowings 16 1,089,616 5,797,509
Trade and other payables 16 40,632 14,615
Trade and other receivables 16,19 509,669 1,217,226
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23 17,845 99,544
Employees’ benefits 33 66

26.3 Transactions with key management personnel

Transactions with key management personnel on account of short-term benefits amounted to Saudi Riyals 15.3
million (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 13.5 million) of which Saudi Riyals 7.6 million (December 31, 2021: Saudi
Riyals 7.7 million) are included in secondees’ costs above (see Note 26.1). The remuneration paid to directors
amounted to Saudi Riyals 1.05 million (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 1.05 million).
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Impacts of COVID-19

Since early 2020, the Novel Coronavirus Pandemic (COVID-19) has spread globally across various geographies
causing disruption to businesses and economic activities thereby impacting the oil prices and products demand.
The management has continued to proactively assess its impacts on its operations and took a series of preventive
measures to ensure the health and safety of its employees, customers and the wider community as well as to ensure
the continuity of supply of its products throughout its markets.

Whilst it is challenging to predict the full extent and duration of business and economic impacts, the Company’s
management has considered the potential impacts of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations and concluded that
as of the issuance date of these financial statements, no significant changes are required to the judgements and
key estimates. The Company is continuously monitoring the current situation and any change in the judgements
and key estimates will be reflected as part of the operating results and cash flows of the future reporting periods.

Contingencies and commitments

(i) Inaddition to the amounts disclosed in notes 16.3.3 and 24.3 respectively, bank guarantees and letters of credit
issued on behalf of the Company as at December 31, 2022 amounted to Saudi Riyals 1,828 million (December
31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 1,545 million).

(ii) In addition to the amounts disclosed in note 14.2, capital commitments contracted for but not incurred as at
December 31, 2022 amounted to Saudi Riyals 194 million (December 31, 2021: Saudi Riyals 66.3 million).

(iii) During the year ended December 31, 2021, Saudi Electricity Company (“SEC”) raised a claim against the
Company alleging that the Company breached the Power Supply Agreement (the “Agreement”) by importing
power in excess of the 130MWs threshold set in the Agreement. After payment of an undisputed amount of
Saudi Riyals 56.4 million, the remaining disputed amount is Saudi Riyals 317.98 million which consists of
penalty on Grid Utilization Fee for 2018 and higher Grid Utilization Fee for 2019 and 2020 compared to the
threshold stated as per the Agreement. The matter was initially submitted for the review of Dispute Resolution
Committee (the “Committee”) under the Water and Electricity Regulatory Authority (“‘WERA”). In addition to the
above, SEC increased the claim amount to Saudi Riyals 365.7million by adding Saudi Riyals 47.7 million as
Grid Utilization Fee for 2021 which was the subject of a new Grid Utilization Agreement negotiated by the
Company and SEC (National Grid), and not part of the above dispute. On December 19, 2021, the Committee
issued an administrative decision ordering the Company to pay SEC the claim amount of Saudi Riyals 365.7
million. The Company’s management believed that the Committee’s decision was flawed on various grounds
and represented a breach of the Kingdom’s laws, regulations, and/or Shari’a laws. The Company filed an appeal
against the Committee’s decision on several grounds with the Jeddah Administrative Court at the Board of
Grievances. Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2022, the Jeddah Administrative Court held the
appeal hearing on February 8, 2023 and ruled in favour of the Company.

Applicability of new Companies Law

The new Companies Law issued through Royal Decree M/132 on 1/12/1443H (corresponding to June 30, 2022)
(hereinafter referred as "the Law”) came into force on 26/6/1444 H (corresponding to January 19, 2023). For certain
provisions of the Law, full compliance is expected not later than two years from 26/6/1444H (corresponding to
January 19, 2023). The management is in process of assessing the impact of the New Companies Law and will
amend its By-Laws for any changes to align the Articles to the provisions of the new Law. Consequently, the
Company shall present the amended By-Laws to the shareholders in their Extraordinary / Annual General Assembly
meeting for their ratification.

Approval and authorization for issue

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
Shaban 21, 1444H (March 13, 2023).
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